
 1 

Bishop’s Cleeve Parish Council 
Minutes of the Parish Council meeting  

held in the Village Hall on  2 November 2006 at 7 pm.  
 

Present   
Cllr Mrs V Ayres  ( Chair ), Cllr P Badham [arrived at 7.10pm], Cllr M Beresford, 
Cllr Mrs I Hatton, Cllr Mrs P Hatton, Cllr C Lawrence, Cllr A Lightfoot,  
Cllr P Lightfoot, Cllr A Mackinnon, Cllr P Rawlings, Cllr P Richmond,  
Cllr M Taylor, Cllr P Taylor. 
 
Also Present 
Borough Councillor R D East. 
Borough Cllr Mrs S Hillier-Richardson. 
County Cllr C Jones. 
 
Public Session 
Mrs Fryer thanked the Parish Council for the additional litter bin at the 
Grangefield. 
 
06/140 Policing in Bishop’s Cleeve  This agenda item was brought forward so that 
police officers could leave the meeting early if they wished to do so. 
06/140.1 Inspector Brian Murnaghan introduced himself and PC Phil Groom.  
He explained that neighbourhood policing was a priority for the 
Gloucestershire Constabulary and that in the period running up to Christmas a 
community consultation exercise [street surgeries] would be conducted to 
obtain the views of residents and establish local priorities.  He said that there 
were four police officers and two PCSOs in BishopÕs Cleeve and that an 
additional PCSO would be allocated to the village by the end of December.  
The Constabulary was committed to maintaining a police presence in BishopÕs 
Cleeve despite the question mark over the existing police station premises 
and  long term planning [5 to 7 years] for the new HQ building in BishopÕs 
Cleeve was back on the agenda. 
In response to questions Inspector Murnaghan said that the process for 
recruiting civilian volunteers was being formalised and provided statistics on 
crime levels and detection rates. 
Cllr P Lightfoot thanked PC Groom for his help in improving police liaison in 
BishopÕs Cleeve. 
 
06/141 Apologies for absence 
06/141.1 Apologies for absence were received from Cllr G Jackson. 
 
06/142 Minutes of the Parish Council meeting held on 5 October 2006  
06/142.1 Cllr A Lightfoot proposed that the last sentence of paragraph 
06/133.2 should be amended to read Òthe Parish Council could not allocate 
funding to repair the track as the allotments were required to be self 
funding”. This was seconded by Cllr P Taylor and agreed by the Council. 
The amendment was made and Cllr A Lightfoot proposed that the minutes be 
accepted as an accurate record of the meeting.  This was seconded by Cllr 
Mrs P Hatton and agreed unanimously. 



 2 

 
06/143 Matters arising from the minutes 
06/143.1 Cllr Beresford reported that he and the Clerk would be meeting the 
Sportsfield Grounds Maintenance Contractor on 3 November. 
 
06/143.2 Cllr Jones reported that he had spoken to a representative of the 
school about the litter problem at Dale Walk. 
 
06/143.3 Cllr Jones said that Gloucestershire County Council could arrange 
the production of identity cards for councillors at a cost of £16 for twenty if 
photographs were supplied.  
 
06/144 Planning and Licences 
06/144.1 The minutes of the planning committee meetings held on 10 and 24 
October 2006 and planning decisions made by Tewkesbury Borough Council 
since the last Parish Council meeting were noted. 
 
06/144.2 Councillors asked about the planning application for the cadet 
building and Cllr East confirmed that planning permission would be issued 
shortly. 
 
06/144.3 Cllr A Lightfoot reported that a VDS meeting would be arranged 
within the coming week. 
 
06/145 Traffic, Highways and Footpaths 
06/145.1 Cllr Rawlings reported that the litter bin had been placed at the bus 
shelter near the Lidl store and that he was investigating the cost of seating for 
the shelter in Rectory Court.  Seating for bus shelters would be discussed at 
the next traffic committee meeting. 
 
06/145.2 Cllr Rawlings reported on his meeting at Shire Hall earlier in the 
week.  He said subjects discussed included the civil enforcement of parking 
restrictions [decriminalisation of illegal parking] and the implications for local 
authorities, the award of Quality Status to Parish Councils and the 
Gloucestershire Charter.  He said that these were issues to be considered by 
the Parish Council.   
 
06/145.3 Cllr Jones said that he could arrange for a representative of the 
County Council [Hester Hunt] to attend the next Parish Council meeting to 
discuss the Gloucestershire Charter.  The Chair agreed that Ms Hunt should 
attend at 7pm and that the meeting would start early to accommodate that. 
 
06/146 Sportsfield and Play Areas 
06/146.1 The minutes of the sportsfield/playing fields committee meeting held 
on 18 October 2006 were noted. 
 
06/146.2 Cllr Mackinnon said that the legal transfer of the land at Finlay Way 
would be discussed in committee at TBC on 9 November. 
 



 3 

06/146.3 Cllr Hillier-Richardson asked if a childrenÕs play area  could be 
provided at the sportsfield as the Open Space Audit had identified a need for 
such facilities in the area.  This, and the proposal for a skate park, was 
discussed by councillors and Cllr Mackinnon said that the Sportsfield 
Committee would consider the funding of projects at its budget setting 
meeting on 15 November 2006. 
 
06/146.4 The Clerk confirmed that a cost quote for the work required at the 
parish pump/garden area had been received and would be discussed at the 
next Sportsfield Committee meeting.  Cllr A Lightfoot suggested that before 
any work was authorised the plans for the community barn and their 
implications for the garden should be considered. 
 
06/147 Community Building 
06/147.1 The minutes of the community building committee meeting held on 
26 September 2006 were noted. 
 
06/147.2 Cllr P Lightfoot highlighted items in the TreasurerÕs Report and said 
that the name recorded in the minutes as Mr Phil Taylor should read Mr Phil 
Clapham. 
 
06/147.3 Cllr Richmond congratulated the committee on the improvements 
made to the kitchen at the Community Building. 
 
06/148 Donations 
06/148.1 Cllr Rawlings proposed that a donation of £50 be made to the British 
LegionÕs Poppy Appeal.  This was seconded by Cllr Richmond and agreed 
unanimously. 
 
06/149 Clerk’s Report 
06/149.1 Councillors noted the list of publications and documents received at 
the Parish Council office since the last meeting. 
 
06/149.2 The Clerk was asked to inform Tewkesbury Borough Council that 
the priority use for Section 106 money resulting from the development of the 
land adjacent to the Lidl store was considered to be the purchase of play 
equipment.  He was asked to refer TBC to earlier correspondence on this 
subject and to request a copy of the [draft] Section 106 legal agreement. 
 
06/149.3 Cllr Beresford agreed to represent the Parish Council on TBCÕs 
Volume Crime Group. 
 
06/149.4 Cllr Rawlings proposed that the draft fire risk assessment be 
amended to show people at risk included councillors, people attending 
meetings at the office and members of the public and that the evaluate and 
act section should record that the office is a non-smoking area.  He said that 
efforts should be made to empty waste paper bins every day.  Cllr Ayres 
suggested that a fire blanket and smoke alarm should be purchased.  The 
Clerk was asked to take the necessary action. 
 



 4 

06/149.5 Cllr P Lightfoot asked for a similar risk assessment to be produced 
for the Community Building. 
 
06/149.6 Cllr Rawlings reminded councillors of the meeting to discuss the 
future of Orchard House arranged for 9 November and urged as many people 
as possible to attend. 
 
06/150 Parish Council Committee Vacancies resulting from the 
resignation of Cllr Bowd 
06/150.1 Cllr P Taylor agreed to become a member of the Planning and 
Traffic committees. 
 
06/151 Community Barn/New Parish Council Office 
06/151.1 Cllr A Lightfoot reported on progress with the project and explained 
the amendments made to the plans for the building since the last meeting. 
The Clerk reported that the arrangements for the loan from TBC were still to 
be finalised. 
 
06/152 Footpath at St. Michaels Church  
06/152.1 Cllr Badham reported that he had received a complaint about the 
state of the St Michaels Church footpath and said that the path did not comply 
with the Disability Discrimination Act.  He asked whether action could be 
taken to remedy the problem. 
 
06/152.2 Cllr Jones said that he had discussed this with the Public Rights of 
Way Officer at Gloucestershire County Council some time ago and had been 
informed that the cost of repairing the steps and the path would be about 
£35,000.  This was more than the CouncilÕs annual budget allocated for 
footpath repairs. 
 
06/152.3 Cllr Rawlings said that the Traffic Committee could contribute to the 
repair costs but councillors were concerned about taking responsibility for 
repairing the steps and any subsequent liability.  However, they agreed to co-
operate with the County Council and to consider contributing to the cost of 
resurfacing the path.  Cllr Jones agreed to ask GCC to arrange a site 
inspection with Cllr Rawlings. 
 
06/153 Finance 
06/153.1 Cllr Richmond asked for an explanation of the VAT payment 
of £520.42.  The Clerk said that he would report back at the 
December Parish Council meeting.  Cllr Richmond proposed 
acceptance of the following schedule of payments subject to a 
satisfactory explanation of the payment.  This was seconded by 
Cllr P Taylor and agreed unanimously. 
 
Parish Office 
Gloucester Calculating Ltd  Payroll Apr Ð September  £   84.60 
Diocese of Gloucester  Allotment Rent   £ 387.50 
Cleeve Building Supplies Ltd Miscellaneous Replacements £   10.77 
BishopÕs Cleeve Village Hall Hall Hire July Ð September  £   40.50 



 5 

Glasdon U.K. Ltd   Three Litter Bins   £ 365.16 
Smith of Derby   Half cost of Church Clock annual 
     Maintenance    £ 101.05 
The Big Yellow   Annual Storage Fee   £ 602.77 
The Street Nameplate Co.  Nameplates    £ 237.35 
K. Thomas    Stamps    £   69.00 
Wicksteed Leisure   New Swing    £ 229.76 
M. Holder    Straw Bales Ð allotments  £ 375.00 
Cleeve Fire Protection  Service Fire EquipÕt Ð Pavilion £   64.04 
Glasdon UK Ltd   Litter Bin Liner etc   £   88.54  
White          Mileage Sept / Oct   £   89.59 
Cleeve Garden Machinery  Repairs to Hedge Trimmer  £   24.09 
Customs and Excise  VAT bill re September  £ 520.42 
Cornish    Salary     £ 217.04 
Thomas    Salary              £1030.99 
White     Salary               £ 382.35 
Inland Revenue   Tax and NIC    £ 764.06 
White     Re-inbursement purchases £   41.43 
NPower    Office Electricity   £ 134.76 
 
Sports Field 
Low Cost Cleaning Ltd  Cleaning Pavilion Ð September £ 235.00 
J. Vining    Ground Maintenance  £ 783.34 
J. Vining    Ground Maintenance  £ 783.34 
Npower    Electricity    £ 140.83 
Institute of Groundmanship Book Ð PQS Football Plus Intro. £   20.00 
 
Community 
Premiere Products   Cleaning Materials   £   62.09 
Severn Trent Water   Wates Bill    £   93.50 
Gurney    Salary     £ 411.42 
Inland Revenue   Tax and NIC    £ 129.68 
NPower    Electricity    £ 371.67 
 
06/154 Borough Councillors’ Reports 
06/154.1 Cllr Beresford reported that resurfacing work on the GWR footpath 
had been completed.  It was 1.4 metres wide which meant that there was an 
ÒunsurfacedÓ strip of footpath and he suggested that the Parish Council may 
wish to pay for the additional work to widen the path.  He asked that this be 
placed on the agenda for the December meeting. 
 
06/154.2 Cllr Mackinnon said that TBCÕs new committee structure had come 
into effect.  He said that discussions on waste recycling were continuing. 
 
06/154.3 Cllr Richmond reported that the white paper on local government 
emphasised the need for Parish Councils to achieve Quality Status.  He 
provided feed back from the licensing sub-committee and said that the legal 
transfer of the land at Finlay Way and the Section 106 funding would be 
discussed in committee on 9 November. 
 



 6 

06/155 County Councillor’s Report 
06/155.1 Cllr Jones reported that [a] the Wingmoor Farm Task Group would 
be meeting on 15 November, [b] there was no news about the Grundon 
application to extend the life of the site, [c] the next Rooftop meeting would be 
held on 4 December and that the garages would be a major topic for 
discussion, [d] he had still not received the results of the Station Road safety 
survey and [e] the lights at the Methodist Church should be connected by the 
electricity company within the next two weeks. 
 
06/155.2 Orchard House. Cllr Jones said that he had been promised a copy of 
the relevant pages of the County CouncilÕs report on Homes for Older People 
and he referred to the Order of St JohnÕs analysis of the work required at 
Orchard House.  He hoped that a consultation meeting could be arranged in 
BishopÕs Cleeve at the end of November and urged councillors to attend the 
public meeting at the Cheltenham Civil Service Club on 9 November.  Cllr 
Ayres asked Councillors to attend a meeting to discuss the Parish CouncilÕs 
response to the County CouncilÕs proposals at 6.30pm on 7 November at the 
Parish Council Office. 
 
06/156 AOB 
06/156.1 Cllr M Taylor said that he had reminded TBC that their grass cutting 
people were missing an area of grass in Cheltenham Road.  TBC had agreed 
to investigate and to let Cllr Taylor know when grass cutting would be 
undertaken. 
 
06/156.2 Cllr Badham thanked the Parish Council on behalf of the Chamber of 
Commerce for their support throughout the year and said that this yearÕs 
Christmas event would be held on 24 November. 
 
06/156.3 Cllr Richmond said that he would be submitting a report on his 
attendance at this yearÕs NALC conference. 
 
06/156.4 Cllr Ayres said that she had received a letter from the Countryside 
Alliance asking councillors to support their campaign to prevent the closure of 
local post offices. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 10pm. 
 
 
 
SignedÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÉ  
 
Dated this 7th day of December 2006  
 
 
 


